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CHAIRMAN REBER:

I'd like to convene

this public hearing of the House of
Representatives Environmental Resources and
Energy Committee.

For the record, I'm

Bob Reber from Montgomery County.

Chairman

I'd like to

introduce some other members here at the desk
for this particular hearing today.
First of all, to my immediate left is
Craig Shuey who is with Senator Madigan's
office.

To his right is Gary Baker who is with

Senator Lammond's office.

To my right is Chief

Counsel of the House of Environmental

Resources

and Energy Committee, Fred Taylor.
At this time I'd like to turn to our
host Representative Major for a short
introduction and welcome those people to
Tunkhannock.
REPRESENTATIVE MAJOR:

Thank you,

Chairman Reber, and good afternoon, and welcome
to Wyoming County.

I would like to extend my

sincere thanks to Chairman Reber and the
members of the committee, and the staff of the
House Environmental Resources and Energy
Committee for scheduling this hearing today.

I

would also like to thank all the presenters who

nave taken time irom their busy schedules to
provide testimony.
As you will hear today, the bluestone
industry is a very important and vital industry
to the northeast region of Pennsylvania.

The

bluestone, also known as flagstone, plays a key
economic impact for our rural counties.

And

with that, I'll turn the meeting back to
Chairman Reber.

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN REBER:
Representative Major.

Thank you,

I would like to note for

the record that we do have this hearing
transcribed.

We have just broken for summer

recess and many of the members are in various
parts of the state with other committees, as
well as other business getting ready for the
summer season of quite a number of public
hearings and committee meetings around the
state.
As a result of that fact, the
testimony that is presented both verbally as
well as prepared written statements will be
made

available

to

all

members

of

the

Environmental Resources Committee and lodged as
part of the public record with the archives,

documents, et cetera, or the House of
Representatives.
At this time I would like to call as
our first witness Rod Fletcher of the
Pennsylvania Department of Environmental
Protection.

Rod, if you want to come to the

front side here and we can proceed.
MR. FLETCHER:

Good afternoon, Mr.

Chairman, and members of the subcommittee.
name is Rod Fletcher.

My

I am the Director of the

Bureau of Mining and Reclamation, DEP.

I'm

here representing my boss, Bob Dolence.
asked me to express his regrets.

He has

He had

another commitment, an emergency come up, so he
will not be able to be here as he had planned
today, but we do have some prepared remarks and
I will present them on his behalf.
Mr. Chairman, and members of the
committee:

Thank you for opportunity to meet

with this Committee to discuss House Bill 1975
as it relates to bluestone mining.

Bluestone

is a bluish gray sandstone that is abundant in
several northeastern counties of Pennsylvania,
and as you know, it is used for paving and
building construction.

Under the Noncoal

Surface Mining Conservation and Reclamation Act
of 1984, DEP regulates the mining of industrial
minerals similar to bluestone such as limestone
and shale.
In accordance with Noncoal SMCRA,
potential quarry operators propose a mining
plan through a permit application.

DEP uses

this mining plan to determine if the mining
will adequately address all regulations
outlined in Noncoal SMCRA.

If the plan meets

all the requirements of the law, the permit is
issued to a quarry operator.

DEP then follows

through with a regular site inspections to
ensure the operator is indeed abiding by the
permit provisions.
This process may seem outwardly
heavy-handed and cumbersome, but it results in
fair treatment for all mine operators and equal
consideration of all mining plans.

More

important, however, is that the regulations
enforced through this process exist to protect
the safety and well-being of citizens
near quarries and the land and water

living
inevitably

impacted by the mining operations.
Activities associated with surface

mining can be dangerous if not properly
conducted.

The safety risks relating to

surface mining do not disappear when mining
activities end.

If highwalls are not

reclaimed, they pose a falling danger to
unexpecting hikers or hunters.

Pennsylvania's

coal and noncoal mining regulations require
that operators return the mining sites to their
original contour to eliminate unsafe conditions
and environmental pollution.
The Commonwealth is currently engaged
in an intense effort to reclaim abandoned mined
lands left over from unregulated mining of the
past.

Pennsylvania has 2,400 miles,

approximately, of streams that have difficulty
supporting life because of drainage from
abandoned mined lands.

Over 250,000 acres of

abandoned mine lands dot the Commonwealth.
These lands generally are worthless because of
poor soil quality and an unstable contour.
Pennsylvanians are needlessly injured or killed
because of dangerous abandoned mine sites.
With each acre reclaimed, lives are
saved and the quality of water, flora and fauna
are improved.

These efforts clearly make

Pennsylvania a more attractive place to live
and work.

Current mining laws, like Noncoal

SMCRA are intended to prevent the creation of
more abandoned sites and the subsequent

safety

and environmental hazards associated with them.
House Bill 1975 proposes to amend
Noncoal SMCRA by revising the definition of
surface mining.

The definition would exclude

the extractions and removal from a mining site
of the lesser of the 1,000 tons or 750 cubic
yards of minerals within 12 successive
months.

calendar

Mine operators who qualify under this

exclusion would not be required to obtain a
surface mine operator's license, a mining
permit, or any authorization of these mining
sites.
Additionally, these operators would
not be required to comply with the reclamation,
blasting or other standards and protections
provided by Noncoal SMCRA.
Under this amendment, there are no
tonnage limits for overburden that is mined and
left on the site, or any overburden that is
removed from the mining site for highway
construction purposes.

The location of the mining site will
be registered in the County Conservation
District where the site is located.

Mineral

extraction must occur in a manner that does not
affect the hydrologic balance of the
environment.
DEP's assessment is that amendments
proposed by H.B. 1975 do not provide

sufficient

protections to ensure a safe and
environmentally-friendly mining operation.

The

proposal actually counters the main objective
of Noncoal SMCRA which is to protect public
health and safety and the environment from the
possible negative impacts of mining.

DEP finds

it difficult to support H.B. 1975 for the
following specific reasons:
Item.

The bill would exempt many

future and possibly existing mining sites
throughout the Commonwealth from being
regulated under Noncoal SMCRA.

These sites

could be mined without specific

requirements

for reclamation or for consideration of
environmental impacts and public safety.
Item.

The bill allows for unlimited

removal of overburden for highway

construction

witnout a requirement tor trie mined land to be
reclaimed.

If these highwalls are not

reclaimed, they would pose a hazard to public
safety.

Noncoal SMCRA contains an exemption

for borrow pits used for PennDOT highway
construction projects.

The contract for these

projects must include a requirement for the
reclamation of the borrow area in accordance
with Noncoal SMCRA.
Here is another item.

Because of

previous unregulated mining similar to that
proposed by H.B. 1975, some operations have
placed large amounts of overburden downslope at
mining sites.

These conditions cause serious

environmental problems and prevent

successful

reclamation of the surface mining site.

Under

DEP's present mining program, overburden that
is suitable for highway construction or fill
may be removed from the permitted site, in
addition to the principal mineral being mined.
However, the overburden materials remaining on
site must be properly handled to facilitate
reclamation and protect the environment and
public health and safety.
Item.

The bill does not identify the

party

or

agency

that

will

have

the

responsibility to monitor these mining sites
for compliance with the 1,000 tons or 750 cubic
yards limits for overburden removal for highway
construction purposes.

The bill requires the

mining site to be registered in the County
Conservation District.

But, it does not

specifically identify the County Conservation
Districts as having oversight and regulatory
responsibilities.
Item.

Blasting is commonly

recognized as a hazardous activity.

The

blasting requirements of Noncoal SMCRA, such as
blast plan submissions and approvals, preblasting surveys and public notice of a
blasting schedule would not be applicable to
these mining sites.

This is another area for

potential hazards to public safety.
Item.

There is no limit to the

number of mining sites a person could have
under this exemption.

The exemptions proposed

by the bill would apply to a single mining
site.

This could result in a person operating

a series of sites in proximity to each other to
avoid being regulated under Noncoal SMCRA.

In addition, the total area affected
by these mining sites will continue to increase
in size because of operations in succeeding
12-month periods even though each site will
remain under the tonnage and cubic yardage
limits for a consecutive 12-month period.
Item.

To gualify for the exclusion

from the definition of surface mining, the
mining activities must not significantly
the hydrologic balance.

affect

The bill contains no

mechanism for a demonstration to be made that
the hydrologic balance will not be affected.
Item.

The bill does not provide for

replacement or restoration of any water
supplies that might be impacted by these
operations.
Item.

The Noncoal SMCRA prohibits

DEP from issuing permits to individuals who
have demonstrated a lack of ability or intent
to comply with the act.

This bad actor

provision protects the people of the
Commonwealth and the environment from
individuals who have demonstrated their
disregard of the law.

This protection will be

lost for operations that are exempted under the

bill .

Item.

To obtain a permit, all

industrial minerals surface mining operators
must demonstrate that their mining activity
will not threaten the continued existence of an
endangered species or adversely affect its
habitat.

There is no way to ensure that the

mining sites exempted under this bill will not
cause harm to an endangered species.
House Bill 1975 is intended to
provide relief to the bluestone operations, it
should be noted that DEP and the bluestone
industry have worked together toward

resolving

the issues associated with regulation, and DEP
has made program changes that are a
considerable benefit to the industry.
Historically, bluestone operations
were unknown to the state and unregulated.

In

1995, Penn State University in cooperation with
DEP completed a field study to determine the
extent of bluestone mining activities in
Pennsylvania.

The results of Penn State's

study and DEP's subsequent validation are
summarized in Tables 1 and 2 that are attached
to my testimony.

Mr. cnairman, i± I could pause at
this moment, I neglected to introduce Roger
Hornberger who is the District Manager in
Pottsville.

Roger is intimately familiar with

the two tables that I just mentioned, so if
there's a need for a discussion he can assist
with that.
CHAIRMAN REBER:

Very good.

The

record will so note that.

Thank you.

Welcome,

Roger.
MR. H O R N B E R G E R :

MR. FLETCHER:

Yes, sir.

With this increased

awareness of bluestone mining activities, in
1997, DEP and the bluestone industry worked
together to develop a document titled Elements
of a Workable Bluestone Program.

This document

is also attached to my testimony, Mr. Chairman.
DEP and bluestone industry have agreed to these
elements and are currently working under the
principles of this agreement.

Table 3 shows a

marked increase in bluestone permit issuance
following the development of the Bluestone
Program.

This bill would undo most of the

elements of the workable program.
Some of the program changes that we

nave made tnat w i n oenetit people mining small
quantities of minerals and/or providing fill
material for construction projects, such as
bluestone operators, include the following:
First, the allowable yearly tonnage
of minerals mined under a small industrial
minerals mining permit was increased from 2,000
tons to 10,000 tons and the permit application
for these mines was simplified.
Second, we have developed a general
permit for short-term construction projects.
This general permit can be used by anyone who
is extracting industrial minerals to supply
fill for a specific construction project.

This

permit will become effective early next week,
Mr. Chairman.
One of the initiatives related to the
development and implementation of the Elements
of a Workable Bluestone Program was the design
of a simplified permit application form for
bluestone operations.

The Department has

completed this redesign and the form has been
implemented.

I believe we have an example of

the form attached for your help and
information as well.
.

—

Finally, regulations were recently
adopted under the authority of Section 26B of
Noncoal SMCRA to allow DEP to develop and issue
general permits for any well-defined

category

of industrial minerals surface mining.
In summary, Mr. Chairman, DEP is
committed to discussing the concerns and doing
our best to resolve the problems associated
with the mining industry.

We will work as

partners with industry to prevent pollution and
restore our natural resources.

In our view,

our past dealings with bluestone mine operators
reflect the spirit of the partnership approach.
DEP does not see H.B. 1975 as a
solution.

On the contrary, we believe that if

the provisions of the bill are implemented, it
would be a step backward in the cooperative
relationship that has formed between DEP and
the industry.
If H.B. 1975 is changed to address
the concerns outlined in the beginning of this
testimony, DEP will certainly give the bill
further analysis.

As the bill stands today, it

would be impossible for DEP to endorse it
because it is fundamentally a conflict with

DEP's mission to protect Pennsylvania's land
and water from pollution and to provide for the
health and safety of its citizens.
Mr. Chairman, that concludes my
prepared remarks.

Roger and I will be happy to

answer any questions.
CHAIRMAN REBER:

Very good.

Mr.

Fletcher, let me just say at the outset that I
deeply appreciate the type of testimony that
you've presented to us and the manner in which
you have prepared your presentation.
In my 18 years in the General
Assembly I've heard from many members of many
departments.

I'm not just speaking of DEP, and

much much longer back its predecessor DER.
But, many times at these hearings we do not get
what I like to see as an analytical analysis as
well as a chronology, as well as some policy
statements from the Department's perspective on
the particular piece of legislation.

Now,

while I personally don't agree with everything
that you've said, I do, in fact, deeply
appreciate the manner in which you presented it
because it does a lot for us.
First of all, you said you would

further analyze the bill if the bill begins to
move through some of the various -- I think you
have already done an excellent job in doing
that.

That, frankly, is one of the reasons why

we have this public hearing process; is really
one of the reasons why I really like to advance
that process, maybe more so than some of my
other fellow committee chairmen in some of the
other areas.
Because, obviously, Representative
Major's has been carrying this ball for us.
Concerns have been expressed to her.

E think

the concerns that have been expressed to her
are consistent with what you have had because
you have had these so-called partnership
meetings.

I'd like to think it was really

possibly the introduction and some of the
preliminary discussions that the Representative
had on this legislation that brought about some
of those partnership decisions and concerns.
So, these are the things that we're
all about.

When we're trying to have

governmental oversight, believe me, no one is
more concerned about the mission of DEP since I
was the author of creating DEP when we

bifurcated the two departments.

And I think

it's very important to move in the direction in
resolving the conflicts or some of the problems
that exist between the Department and this
particular industry, the bluestone industry, to
see what we can and can't do.
This is a framework for that
discussion.

This piece of legislation is,

obviously, a vehicle for implementing that type
of framework and advancing that discussion.

I

know some of the things that you have expressed
certainly would be viewed by the committee,
would even be viewed by myself before we would
bring something like this to the full floor of
the House of Representatives for consideration.
And likewise, I'm also very much
aware that some of the concerns you have
expressed in the testimony relative to the
issue on replacement of restoration of water
supplies, bad actor provision, et cetera, many
of these concerns would impact on this industry
notwithstanding because of the general
plethora of environmental laws that we have in
the Commonwealth.

So, even though we don't

specifically address it, we still would have

regulatory and legal oversight in those areas
notwithstanding whether it would be referenced
in this legislation or not.
While that's very good for someone
maybe sitting back in the Department taking a
blinder's look, if you will, I think to some
extent isn't the true setting that we would be
operating under if this or any prodigy of it
would become law in the Commonwealth.
MR. FLETCHER:
precisely right.

Mr. Chairman, that is

Obviously, what we have

presented is the specific perspective that's
part of the Department's

responsibility.

Obviously, I can put myself in the place as an
individual or put myself in the place of a
bluestone operator.

And, I also can kind of

empathize and understand some of the concerns
that they have.

But, obviously, we have the

responsibility to present it.
CHAIRMAN REBER:

I understand it.

As

a practicing attorney, I represented many
clients and have advanced many positions that
maybe I didn't agree with ever single thing I
had to say, but that was the position I had to
take for the party, agency, individuals that I

nad to represent.

I understand that where you

are coming from.
I just felt from an overview
standpoint it's important to look at the
process, as well as the substantive issues that
we are addressing.

I think again that from the

procedural standpoint in your presentation, you
really gave us what we have to hear.

I think

it's important for the record in establishing a
dialogue or analysis of this issue.
And then with that

long-winded

preliminary opening comment, I'll turn to see
if there are any questions.

I'll turn, first

of all, to Representative Major, the prime
sponsor of this bill.
REPRESENTATIVE MAJOR:
Chairman Reber.

Thank you,

Mr. Fletcher, thank you very

much for your testimony.

As Chairman Reber

indicated, it's very informative, and

I too

appreciate the way that you have presented it
here today.
I agree that we do not want to go
backwards with the bluestone industry.

Since I

have been a legislator, I have worked with the
bluestone people very closely here in the

northeast region, and they have some genuine
concerns about the regulations that the
Department, in fact, imposes on them.
I know one of their significant
concerns is the fact that the Department might
not necessarily relate specifically to what
goes on in the field.

In another words,

there's kind of an out of touch.

We're working

with Mr. Hornberger and also Jeff Jarrett, they
have been very responsive to those concerns .
But, we feel at this point in time
that we need to go a little bit further, in
fact, a lot further because we have a
significant concern for the mom-and-pop
quarries that are here in the northeast.

With

our farming industry on the down side like it
is, very often some of our farmers who have
small quarries on their properties can look to
those quarries to help subsidize their
financial situation.
So, I would just stress those points
to you; and also ask that you keep in mind
when, in fact, and I am very much in agreement
with looking at House Bill 1975 and possibly
some amendments that may be needed to be added

to it to satisfy some concerns of the
Department.

I would ask that, in fact, when

you are looking at the legislation and
amendments that might be considered that you
keep in mind that, in fact, it is the bluestone
industry.

That we don't compare it to the coal

industry and other industries in our non-mining
area.

That's very important as far as we're

concerned because that is something the
Department in the past, and although I
admittedly state that you have come a long way,
we still have a long way to go.

So, I would

just ask for that -MR. FLETCHER:

Representative, I want

to assure you that I personally am very
sensitive to that.
coal industry.

It certainly is not the

It's completely different.

In fact, interestingly enough,
although I am no expert in what is happening in
New York, I know there's also some discussions
going on there.

Recently I have been trying to

get some background information and what is
happening.

Obviously, they have the same kinds

of problems where they're concerned about the
board of regulations, and they've kind of

entered into discussions witn New Y O T K
regulators.

So it seems to me that would be a

better framework of comparison as a -REPRESENTATIVE MAJOR:

Yes, I know

and thank you.
MR. FLETCHER:

But overall, we still

have guidelines of SMCRA and other
environmental laws that have —

that have to

play some role here.
As far as being out of touch, I know
that Roger, this is something that Roger has
been engaged on.
REPRESENTATIVE MAJOR:
Roger credit and Jeff Jarrett.

And I give
They have been

very cooperative and held numerous meetings
with people in this area that are bluestone
industry.

I compliment their efforts and the

direction that they have taken in the bluestone
industry that they have been very cooperative.
And as I said, there's still some other things
that still need to be addressed.

So, I would

just ask the Department to maintain an open
mind with addressing those issues.
thank you.
MR. FLETCHER:

Thank you.

Again, I

CHAIRMAN

REBER:

Representative Major.

Than* you,

Mr. Baker, any questions

or any comments on behalf of Senator Lammond;
MR. BAKER:

Not at this time.

CHAIRMAN REBER:
MR. SHUEY:

Okay, fine.

Craig.

Yeah, just one question.

You mentioned the word, in this bill, site as a
loophole.

A mining company could have dozens

of sites.

How will we close that to make it

apply to these small operators, the guy who is
using it on their farm?
apply to

How can we make it to

—
MR. FLETCHER:

Just to simplify it,

one way of doing it, perhaps, would be to
specify how many locations of the individual is
involved in it.

The total of all of those

locations should not exceed whatever the limits
are .
Again, I mentioned New York.

I

haven't really had the chance to study what
they're doing.

I was reading a proposal from

the bluestone industry in New York.

Theirs is

different, in that, it does kind of limit to
that one -- total of a thousand tons of
voice) sites.

That would be one.

(drops

LHAiKMAN KttBUK:
Shuey.

TnanK you, Mr.

I deeply appreciate again the executive

staff members of both Senator Madigan who is
Chairman of the Environmental

Resources

Committee in the Senate as the counterpart to
my House committee being here.
Chief Counsel Taylor.
MR. TAYLOR:

Yes.

Good morning.

Mr.

Fletcher, in your testimony you talk about
monitoring and oversight, and so forth.

You

also talked about Conservation Districts.
Assume this exemption goes through with all the
other provisions in it, worked out and so on,
who do you envision or what agency do you
envision doing the monitoring and/or oversight?
The Department or conservation
MR. FLETCHER:
feel on that?

districts?

Roger, do you have a

The point that I was making in

the testimony is that, right now no one has
been identified as being responsible.
Obviously, if we're saying that we are going to
exempt a certain group of people somehow we
have to keep track of them.

So, whether it's

the Conservation District or the Department,
what do you see as being more likely?

MR. HORNBERGER:

I think there were

some discussions with county

representatives

from the Northern Tier Counties, a couple
meetings where some provisions were discussed,
Mr. Taylor; where the Conservation

Districts

under the existing laws have some ability to be
involved in small and noncoal

industrial

minerals operations if they want a delegation.
And not speaking for all of those
counties, but hearing some of the comments, I
think there was a concern about manpower.

Some

counties where there's a large number of
operations; for instance, our Table 1,
Susquehanna County, shows possibly more than
500 operations, there's a concern about whether
our Department had adequate manpower or whether
the counties had adequate manpower.
Obviously, if it's something that
requires a permit or some approval from us,
that our mining inspector would do the
inspection.

I don't know if the counties have

enough manpower to pick up the same type of
workload.
MR. TAYLOR:
inspection.

All right.

You say

Is inspection the same thing as

monitoring.'
MR. HORNBERGER:

Yes, sir.

We would

list our inspectors under monitoring and
compliance activities.
In the case of bluestone, I think
there's been a success story so far.
that more work needs to be done.

I agree

But, in

working with the Bluestone Association to get
the one-page simplified permit, we essentially
had an amnesty program that we announced.
rather than taking a heavy antigen

That

compliance

action of mandatory penalties and large fines
for not having proper licensing and permits,
we'd said we'd work with the bluestone
operators.
I think on Table 3 you can see that
in 1997 after this announcement, 109 permits
were issued; just a simplified permit within a
one-year period.

I think there's been some

pretty good successes.

If they're truly small

operations, it's relatively easy for our permit
staffing to do the permitting and inspectors to
do the inspections.
MR. TAYLOR:

Okay.

Thank you.

is not a question; just a statement.

My

This

concern is, i Know tne Department has come back
to me on many, many occasions when we talk
about new programs and talk about lack of
personnel.

I'm also painfully aware that the

Conservation Districts right now are up to
about here or maybe up to here

(demonstrating)

in work to do and they're being assigned more
and more projects not by legislative request or
by regulatory request, but because the
Department has given them more to do.
they'll have a terrible problem too.

I think
I think

it's something very seriously the Department
thinks about how they're going to do this
monitoring.
MR. HORNBERGER:

Yes, sir.

In fact,

I think your comments there reflect the kind of
comments that were made by the counties that
the needs were suggested that the Conservation
Districts might be involved.

Your comments

were very close to what we heard them say.
MR. TAYLOR:
MR. FLETCHER:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
And, of course, the

other issue is that, even though these are
small operations, there are large numbers of
them.

So in terms of keeping track, it's going

to oe an extremely a i n i c u i t
MR. TAYLOR:

tasK.

You're talking about a

lot of people.
MR. FLETCHER:

That's right.

CHAIRMAN REBER:

I was very

interested when I did look at your comments,
Roger, relative to the permits issued in '97 in
comparison to some of the prior years that,
obviously, is emblematic of something moving in
a positive direction.

This is just another

example of many things that have moved in a
positive direction over the last two or three
years with the Department with some of our
smaller type of regulated industries.

I think

that's a good sign.
And, frankly, it's kind of
interesting that the initiative by the Ridge
Administration, vis-a-vis ideas to be pushed
forward by DEP in these kinds of areas is
really philosophically what's behind House Bill
1975.
way.

So, you know, we are not coming this
We are sort of going this way, and

hopefully, eventually winding up at some kind
of common ground.
all about.

I think that's what this is

MR. HORNBERGER:

A very quick point

of clarification about that Table 3 that we
referred to.

It looks like in 1996 there were

only seven permits.
in '98.

We are back to that level

I just want to point out that the

footnote shows that those are seven permits
issued thus far this year, but there are
another 18 in process, so we did have a large
load of them in 1997.

But, I think the trend

of increased small permitting with the simple
form is going to continue for the next couple
of years.
CHAIRMAN REBER:
aware of that.
much, gentlemen.

All right.

Okay, and I was
Thank you very

I appreciate you taking the

time to come to present this.

It's very

important that we do it in the environ, if you
will, where it is mostly publicly

concerned

with the industries that are affected.

I

deeply again appreciate it, and extend my best
to Mr. Dolence.
MR. HORNBERGER:
appreciate your time.

Yes, sir.

We

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN REBER:

The next

individual to testify is Mr. Norman Clark, the

president or trie Pennsylvania Bluestone
Association.

Mr. Clark, we have your testimony

which has already been provided to us.

So, if

you could make the formal introduction of
yourself, you may proceed.
MR. CLARK:

Okay.

You want me to

read my written testimony then?
CHAIRMAN REBER:

However you want to

hear it; if you want to summarize or you don't
want to read it all or you want to skip around,
you're in charge.
MR. CLARK:

If you will bear with me

a little, I have a little eyeball trouble.
Sometimes it gets blurry, but I'd like to read
it, if I could, if you will be patient with me
a little bit.
Good afternoon, members of the
committee.

My name is Norm Clark.

I was born

and raised in Meshoppen, Pennsylvania, and

I'm

somewhat unique as a first generation dairy
farmer.

I have been involved in bluestone

quarrying for 15 or so years in this area.
currently the President of the Bluestone
Association, and I have served in several
capacities for the association, including

I'm

Director or Legislative Airairs.
Bluestone is the bluish-colored
flagstone which is cut from the Endless
mountains of Pennsylvania and southern New
York.

This resource is rare and unique to this

area and highly prized for its beautiful
appearance as indoor flooring, sidewalks, steps
and fireplace mantles.
Generations of families in the rural
areas of Susquehanna, Wyoming, Pike, Potter,
Lackawanna, Wayne, Tioga, and Sullivan counties
have cut bluestone out of the their farm
properties in an attempt to make a little extra
money in the off seasons.
Bluestone is generally located in the
more inaccessible areas of farmland or
overhanging ledges, and therefore, only usable
for quarrying.

The stone is cut from the

mountains and ledges with hand tools and saws
and every piece must be handled

individually.

It is an art form and craft handed down from
generation to generation and neighbor to
neighbor.
I got involved in the bluestone
business as it became necessary to use all the

resources ox our land to supplement my family's
income to support development of our dairy herd
Excuse me.
CHAIRMAN REBER:

Would you like to

take a break, Mr. -MR. CLARK:
dairy here to a fire.

I apologize.

We lost our

It's still tough.

We had a small reserve of stone on
our farm so I taught myself and learned from
others who were in the business how to cut
stone.

From time to time over the years

everyone in my family worked the bluestone on
our property, including our daughters who used
the income to buy school books when they went
to college.

Although I started on my own farm,

I quarried bluestone for other farmers in the
vicinity who needed to support their income to
pay taxes or buy some equipment.
In the 1980's, due to an excessively
rainy year, we lost most of our hay on our farm
which would have wiped us out unless we had the
supplemental income from stone work.

It

carried us through a tough -- the really tough
times.

We survived, but we couldn't have

without the income from bluestone.

I quit the business about four years
ago and reclaimed my quarry because I could
not afford to operate under DEP's regulations
or jump through all the hoops necessary to get
the permit.

I want to get back into the

business and I think I can if I have your help.
The Bluestone Quarryman's Association
formed a Government Relations Committee in late
1980's when the DEP for the first time began to
regulate small bluestone quarries and enforcing
regulations designed for coal stripping and
large mechanized stone quarries.

DEP, until

recently, has always had a one-size-fits-all
approach to regulations and that hit us small
bluestone quarrymen with a vengeance.
I ask you to keep in mind that the
people who would be benefited by Representative
Major's bill for the most part are small family
farmers working with stone on their own land or
on their neighbor's land.

This business has

always been conducted with trust and a handshake for the deals.

We were not accustomed to

using supplemental C's or complicated leases or
using consultants to design operational plans,
let alone being able to afford hiring

consultants.
We

are

also

relatively

unsophisticated but highly independent people.
Frankly, we got our backs up when people try to
push us around, and DEP did.

They came up here

and flat out told us that we either had to get
a permit with all the expense and red tape
including bonds, licenses and certifications
that come with it, or shut down; get out of
business and cover up the natural resource and
vital —

asset vital to our economic well-being

and that our families have benefited from for
generations.
The impact of this type of regulation
was geographically demonstrated by DEP's own
statistics.

In three northeastern

counties

alone, the number of bluestone guarries
declined from 643 in 1988 to 349 in 1993.

I

suppose there are some people who would say
that those numbers are a sign of success.
looked at it as the sign of a failed

We

regulatory

program and hardship to a great number of our
citizens.
A lot of quarrymen simply quit the
business, myself included.

Others simply

j-gnorea tne regulations ana triea to Keep
going, hoping that the inspectors would not
find them.

You have to understand that we were

desperate.

The government was hell bent on

forcing regulations designed for the big guys
down our throats, and we knew that kind of
regulation would put us out of business.

Look

at the statistics.
You have to remember also that we are
not scofflaws or environmental criminals.

By

and large, we lived on the land and are
hardworking tax-paying citizens who have lived
and worked in this area for generations.

How

do you think we felt when DEP came roaring in
here to put most of us out of business?

This

really struck in your throat when you looked
across the border in New York and saw that all
of their small operators had an exemption from
regulations.
We really had our backs against the
wall and most of us wanted to comply but knew
we couldn't.
the

courts

We had no place to turn except to
where

we

challenged

the

constitutionality of the regulations being
imposed on us by DEP.

Our case was dismissed,

out Ltiiet Judge Conaboy recognized what was
going on very well and he said in his opinion,
and I quote:

The issues raised by the small

owners and operators of the bluestone quarries
concerning overregulations is a matter more
appropriately addressed by the General Assembly
and the political process.

The legislature has

provided a safety valve in which a small owner
operator may take advantage by finding a waiver
or variance from the regulations.

This, in no

way, absolves the DER's bureaucratic machinery
which very well may not be addressing the need
for the small quarry owner and operator.
The Plaintiff's appeal to this court
that such regulations adopted by the State of
New York which exempts the small owner/operator
of a quarry would be the more appropriate
regulatory scheme in the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania.

As this court has indicated, the

sounding board for such an argument is not the
Judiciary, but rather the Pennsylvania General
Assembly.
Judge Conaboy went on in a footnote
in his opinion:

But these days, an oppressive

government conduct in overregulation are very

topical considerations.

Government agencies

would do well and serve the best interest of
constitutional government to be circumspect and
use restraint in interfering with private
conducts.

Regulations should not be imposed in

a dictatorial or oppressive manner.
We did not agree then and we may not
agree now with the judge that there is no
constitutional deprivation when state
overregulations puts a lot of people out of
business, but he did hit the nail on the head
about dictatorial, one-size-fits-all
regulations.
At the same time we began to talk to
our local elected officials.

With their help

we were granted audiences with the bigshot DEP
bureaucrats in Harrisburg, and to be sure lip
service was forthcoming.

I have to tell you

that it seemed backwards to us.

We were

begging public servants to help us instead of
the other way around.
Although we had meetings and promises
and meetings, and for awhile we were getting
nowhere fast, we kept after it.

Then our local

political

involved.

leaders

really

got

Representative sanoy Major, Scott Chadwick and
Senator Madigan all were helpful.

The

commissioners of the Northern Tier Counties,
which are also the bluestone counties, called
the DEP to task for conducting business as
usual.

It was clear that we had strong support

for the new approach that was necessary to save
our industry.
Things looked up with the advent of
the Ridge Administration and we began to make
some progress.

Working with new people in DEP

we negotiated and agreed to Elements as a
Workable Bluestone Program.

This lead to a

development of a simplified permit for small
operations and a small license.

With these

improvements our people were able to get into
compliance and obtain the necessary permits.
We had good cooperation with the DEP.

We held

roundtables and tried to engage cooperatively
in problem solving rather than problem
creating.
We came to realize, and DEP people
agreed, that we could not solve the biggest
problems for the small operators who would be
covered by House Bill 1975 under the existing

statute; wnere oonaing is required, Keeping the
pits open over the years runs afoul of the
statute and regulations under the statute
generally.
There were just too many questions
and problems dealing with the regulatory
requirements imposed by the current law that
have absolutely no applicability to the small
bluestone operations.
That is how we came to House Bill
1975.

It was carefully crafted to deal with a

very narrow problem.

It doesn't eliminate

regulation or enforcement.

It just eliminates

DEP permitting, and all the redtape and expense
that goes with it.

An exempt site would have

to be registered and hydrology cannot be
affected.

We are not hiding anything.
Conservation Districts would be

involved.

We will have soil erosion and

sedimentation control plans and the DEP has
ample power under the Clean Streams Law and
other statutes to control activity on the sites
which might create pollution or environmental
harm.
As the committee knows, we have the

support or important statewide organizations
which have interests and concerns about DEP
regulation of the small quarries and all of our
counties.
I have to tell you that we were
stunned and greatly disappointed to learn that
DEP has expressed opposition to this bill; and
if their opposition persists, we ask that the
General Assembly send a message that one size
fits all doesn't work here.
Surely, DEP has got something better
to do than stonewall reform and snarl small
family farms and people struggling to eke out a
living.

We just don't buy that DEP can't

regulate without a permit.

Think of DEP' s

budget and the horde of lawyers who work for
the agency.

Surely they can figure out some

way to get comfortable that they can regulate
this tiny segment of an important industry in
this region if they think there is a risk of
environmental harm or pollution.

When you

think about it, DEP probably spills more than
the $70 million that our little industry
contributes to the local economy.

It's a drop

in the DEP's bucket, but essential to our

economy.
Tomorrow you'll get a chance to see
the kinds of operations to be benefited by
House Bill 1975.

In thinking about this bill,

I ask you keep three things in mind.

First,

bluestone operations of the kind we are talking
about are unigue.

The little guarries have

existed for generations without harm to anyone
or anything and have helped the local
community.

DEP regulation will kill off this

activity.
Second, no federal law requires
regulation of noncoal mineral extractions, so
you legislators are free to help.

You don't

have to have a one-size-fits-all.
Finally, as you can tell from the
letters that the committee has received, copies
of which are attached to our written testimony,
we have the overwhelming local support for the
limited deregulations we are seeking.
We ask that you report House Bill
1975 favorably out of your committee and then
join your colleagues from the Northern Tier in
advocating its passage by the House as soon as
possible.

On behali or the Bluestone
Quarryman's Association, we thank you for your
interest in coming up to the area.

I'll try to

answer any questions you may have.

I have

asked our association's counsel to be here to
help out.

Thank you very much.
CHAIRMAN REBER:

Clark.

Thank you, Mr.

I appreciate your testimony.

I

appreciate the home-spun humor that was
interspersed throughout as well.
I also would note for the record that
we have, in fact, received over the past number
of months the various correspondences that you
referred to.

And I guess we probably have,

Fred, 250, 300 bills approximately like House
Bill 1975 referred to our committee.
Representative Major's support for
this and her discussions with me and with the
Department and, obviously, with you folks out
here in the area that's affected as well as
these letters certainly has gone a long way to
move the process forward.
helpful.

These were very

And at least for my benefit being

from southeast Pennsylvania, I'm not intimately
familiar with all the background that goes in

with this particular type of industry, if you
will.

So, this was a very good educating

process for me and certainly was advantageous
in bringing the committee and the issue to the
forefront and bringing about this particular
hearing in this particular area today.
you.

I thank

I also thank all the various interest

groups that have written to us.
Representative Major, do you have any
questions?
REPRESENTATIVE MAJOR:

I don't have

any questions at this time, but thank you very
much for your testimony.
MR. CLARK:

You're welcome.

REPRESENTATIVE MAJOR:

It was very

well prepared.
CHAIRMAN REBER:
MR. BAKER:

Not at this time.

CHAIRMAN REBER:
MR. SHUEY:

Fred.

No.

CHAIRMAN REBER:
question.

Mr. Shuey.

Not at this time.

CHAIRMAN REBER:
MR. TAYLOR:

Mr. Baker.

Let me just ask one

Since I drove the furtherest I want

to ask a few questions.

JXLK. L-JJAK^:

YOU

Detcna.

Don't

disappoint me.
CHAIRMAN REBER:

I wouldn't do that.

Let me ask you, in the legislation that is
proposed, it talks about being exempted from
the mining of a thousand tons or less than 750
cubic yards.

Most of your fellow industry

people, what's the number of tons that is done
on a yearly basis or 12-month basis, if you
will?
MR. CLARK:

Most time people operate

every day, full time?
CHAIRMAN REBER:
MR. CLARK:
fifteen to 2,000.

Right.

Probably somewhere

You take the average

mom-and-pop size operators would probably not
produce over 200, maybe 250 ton.

But, if they

are putting up all the broken, scrap and rubble
then you get into tonnage and not dollars.
If you are the cutting bluestone,
most of the people like myself who would want
to our subsidize our income for our families,
property tax or college educations, for the
most part we were busy doing something else and
we could only hit the quarry when we got some

spare rime.

Ana mayoe next year we can't even

work it for a year.

Maybe we don't have a

desire or need for money right then other than
our normal income, and maybe we wouldn't even
work it at all for a year or two and then
that's where we get hammered.

We have to

reclaim, cover them up, shut down the highwalls
grade them all up.

Two or three, five years

later you're back out there getting a few more
dollars worth of flagstone.
If the dairy industry would spur up,
a lot of farmers probably wouldn't work the
quarries very much.

But, when the time comes

you need the money, it's nice to go out there
and get it.
CHAIRMAN REBER:
question.

Let me ask you this

You referenced in your prepared

testimony the Clean Stream Laws available for
violations.
MR. CLARK:

Exactly.

CHAIRMAN REBER:

Have there been a

lot of violations, citings?
MR. CLARK:

In preparation for this

day and from working tirelessly with DEP, we
have a good working relationship there and to

K.eep timt going on to protect/preserve ine
industry, some problems further down the road,
I have requested of them on numerous times and
the last couple years that they submit to me
some of the problems that they have with our
industry in relation to environmental
degradation, or violations and the like of
that.

I have only been notified of two in the

last six months.

All the other ones are

failure to obtain a permit, failure to submit
bonding, or the like of that.
There was one situation where someone
had blasted too close to a quarry.
permitted site too and all that.
limitations are there.

That was a
The

You're not supposed to

do that; they did, so that was a problem.

DEP

is so hell bent that we must stockpile all this
dirt piled up in a big pile and immediately
stabilize it.

Well, loose dirt cannot be

immediately stabilized.

A hard rain came and

washed it into the river and the quarryman was
fined for polluting the river.
And I said to DEP, if that quarry
would have been operated in the traditional way
for generation after generations, dirt went on

tne Dottora, snot rocK went on tne top, tne
material wouldn't went in the creek.

He said

if the man would have stabilized it immediately
it wouldn't have went into the creek.

End of

discussion.
So, they are the only two I'm aware
of, and I specifically requested that.

If we

can't work together as the regulator and the
industry; if they can't be telling us what the
problems are with our industry that need to be
corrected; if they'll identify them, we'd like
to correct them or help correct them ourselves.
We don't need some scientist to come in and
tell us we are creating a problem.
problem.

Show us the

We'll find a solution to the problem.
CHAIRMAN REBER:

Thank you very much.

I appreciate it.
REPRESENTATIVE MAJOR:
other question.

I have one

Norm, what year was that that

you went before Judge Conaboy?

Do you

remember?
MR. CLARK:

That was in the very late

'80's; late '80's to the very early '90's.

The

waiver, the vehicle of a waiver that he talked
about there, really, we tried it, but that is

up to DEP to give you that waiver on that.
really was

It

—
It's in the statute of the law, but

it's actually a joke because DEP is the one
that has to do that.

And they did exercise

that right on the exploratory waiver they gave
us last year.

But they didn't want to exercise

the small mom-and-pop or bonding issue that is
the toughest —

is one of the biggest toughest

of the whole thing.
CHAIRMAN REBER:

Judge Conaboy, he, I

assume, was the President Judge of the local
court of Common Pleas?
REPRESENTATIVE MAJOR:
CHAIRMAN REBER:

Wayne County.

Wayne County.

Was

he standing for retention by any chance in or
about the time of that opinion?
REPRESENTATIVE MAJOR:
CHAIRMAN REBER:

I don't know.

I was just curious.

Yes, Counsel Taylor.
MR. TAYLOR:

Norm, what is the size

of an average mom-and-pop operation?
MR. CLARK:

According to DEP ' s

statistics where I got the numbers from of the
ones that went out from 88 to 86, that was

somewnere around two acres.
MR. TAYLOR:
MR. CLARK:
around two acres.

Two acres.
The average size is

So most of these quarries

we're talking about, and Roger Hornberger, I
believe made the comment before that they only
constitute about a half an acre site to an acre
site, what we're talking about here.

If

somebody is gonna be big enough to affect
three, four or five acres they are surely gonna
affect the hydrologic balance.

You're not

gonna be able to run an operation on a very
large scale before you're gonna have a lot of
problem of some kind, which is gonna exempt you
from being entitled to House Bill 1975.
MR. TAYLOR:

If two acres is the

average size, what -- what -- how many of them
would you say are smaller than two acres?
MR. CLARK:
me, but I could —

I didn't bring that with

DEP prepared that a few

years back, but I can't remember every last
Maybe Roger has that study with him.
know.

—

I don't

Do you remember Roger?
MR. HORNBERGER:

table for the record.

I can produce a

Penn State studied the

Lciiiyea daa tne sizes.
MR. CLARK:

i can ao tnat.
It's a good study.

shows a lot of facts.

It

We appreciated it and we

reviewed it a lot in the past.
MR. TAYLOR:

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN REBER:

All right.

Thank

you very much.
MR. CLARK:

We appreciate DEP

listening to us and all your people's help.

I

thank you very much.
CHAIRMAN REBER:

Our next individual

to testify is Donna Williams, President of the
Susquehanna County Farm Bureau.

Ms. Williams,

and we have your testimony already in front of
us, so you can proceed forthwith.
MS. WILLIAMS:
Committee members:

Chairman Reber, and

I really appreciate this

chance to talk to you about this issue.

I am

Donna Williams, and I am a resident of
Susquehanna County.

I actually own farmland in

two different townships in Susquehanna County.
We have an active family dairy farm.
sons operate and manage this farm.

My three
I am also

president of the Susquehanna County Farm
Bureau.

I'm sure you're w e n

aware tnat our

nation's economic foundation has been and still
is agriculture, of which the family farm is
really the cornerstone of that.

Economists

expect loss of the family farm to accelerate in
the next decade.
As Mr. Clark just previously talked
about how the farmer does supplement his
income.

According to the 1992 Census of

Agriculture, in Susquehanna County, 21 percent
of the farmers worked more than 200 days a year
off of the farm.

And in addition to that, 37

percent of the people involved in agriculture
supplement their income with alternate

sources

of income.
Now, Susquehanna County right now in
1998 has a membership of 486.

We are also an

affiliate of the Pennsylvania Farm Bureau which
has a state membership of 26,015.

Farm Bureau

is a grassroots organization with a policy
developed at the county levels and that's
really what drives our organization.
In 1993, Susquehanna County Farm
Bureau presented a policy at the Pennsylvania
Farm Bureau State Convention which was adopted

oy tne voting delegates representing all
counties in Pennsylvania.

That policy reads:

We recommend that persons mining
1,000 tons or less of a marketable mineral be
exempt from the Provision of Act 394 and Act
219.

Back then Farm Bureau could see the

advantage for and need for a bill such as House
Bill 1975.

This bill would be a definite

advantage to the farmer to supplement his
income without obtaining work elsewhere.
And as Mr. Clark says, the farmer is
a very independent person.

There are many

farmers out there that would probably qualify
for food stamps.

And I know farmers that have

gone and gotten medical cards because their
income was not sufficient to be able to supply
those things for their families with the income
that they received on their farm.
It is most evident that the noncoal
quarries are located on land owned by active
dairy farmers or land that was owned by a dairy
farmer who, in most cases, had sold that land
because of economic conditions.

The majority

of the mom-and-pop stone producers would not
exceed a 200-ton per year of cut stone or

stocKpne/waste

stone.

And I want to address

that stockpile waste stone.
In 1965 my husband and I purchased my
grandfather's farm which at one time had a very
active and producing bluestone quarry prior to
1965.

When we had purchased that farm, there

sat the hole with huge piles of the waste, the
rubbish from that operation.

Well, a fellow

came along and wanted to go in there and pallet
that up.

So, it was after the death of my

husband and over about a two-year period I
received $3,500 as my share for that waste,
stockpiled stone that was put up on pallets;
and not one shovel of dirt was moved in order
for me to realize that income.

And, it was

welcomed income because it helped to pay the
real estate taxes.
More times than not where there's
evidence of stone, once excavation has been
done, it's found stone is not bluestone or is
not stone suitable for sawing.
My son had bought some land, and some
of the big guys that are always out there
looking for that gold mine.

They'll go look

and they'll say, oh, it really looks like

there's stone there.

well, when you get down

to see what there really is there, it's not
bluestone.

It can have a brownish color.

It

can be a gray color; you know, different shades
of stone.

So, therefore, the marketability

falls into a category of having that stone
either palleted as broken stand-up, as drywall
or colonial.

Now, today's market there is in a

real good demand for stone that is not sawed.
Therefore, there's no water needed in that
quarry.
Let me give you an example.

A load

of broken stand-up, drywall or colonial would
weigh out at about 20 to 22 ton per load, which
that load would consist of 16 pallets.

It

would take approximately 45 truckloads to reach
that thousand-ton limit that's referred to in
House Bill 1975.
It really is of utmost importance to
the small noncoal boring operation in the
providing of supplemental income to the
agricultural community which we really feel
House Bill 1975 would provide.

House Bill 1975

would eliminate burdensome and expensive
regulation.

The costs associated by present

licensing and permitting, the hiring of
professional

engineers

or

registered

professional land surveyors, cost of obtaining
maps from the local conservation district,
those costs really cannot be justified by the
small quarry operator, and it takes a lot of
time to bring all this together, and time is a
precious commodity.
I mentioned before about my son.
Someone had told him that there was —

they

really felt there was good stone, so they
excavated and there wasn't good stone.

My son

had $6,000 tied up in excavation cost and it
sat there.

And the DEP folks were just telling

how many permits they issued in 1997.
that's what we did.

So,

We went and got one of

those permits last year for a small operation.
But, you know, there's cost involved
in this with the pallets, the wire that you
have to put around this rock to hold it into
place, so that it's not all gravy.

In my son's

case, he still hasn't realized back his initial
cost of even uncovering to be told.
bluestone.

It's not

It's not really anything that's

going to bring you a good dollar.

ao again, House Bill 1975, with the
local conservation district as the overseer,
would

be

a

mechanism

to

encourage

implementation of reasonable soil and erosion
plans.

I really have no idea in Susquehanna

County how many landowners do have a
conservation plan, but I can assure you that
there are many, many of them, so that they're
already dealing with your soil conservation
district.
To be honest with you, who would know
the county any better than the people who live
there and have been working with the landowner
in Susquehanna County.

There would be little

discernible impact on the environment.

The

operations performed by the exempt operators
with the conservation district as an overseer
would preserve the environmental integrity of
the area, and it would also protect the
hydrologic balance of the area.

This bill is a

reasonable balance of landowner and
environmental needs.
I want to stress, where this stone is
not bluestone, it can't be cut into treads and
all that, there's no sauce.

There's no water

tnat you nave to be concerned about.
So, I'd like to thank you personally
as a landowner and an active family farmer, and
as President of Susquehanna County Farm Bureau
for the opportunity to present this testimony
to you today.

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN REBER:
Donna.

Thank you very much,

I appreciate it very much.

I think

somebody sold me something that wasn't
bluestone after listening to your testimony for
a swimming pool that I constructed in my
backyard.

But that's another story.

back and take a look at it.

I'll go

I'll send a

picture up to you.
I have no questions.

Sandy.

REPRESENTATIVE MAJOR:
many —

I look at you as a very

Donna, how
knowledgeable

individual with the farming industry in
Susquehanna County and in Wyoming, all of our
Northern Tier Counties.

About how many people

do you think really would become involved that
are currently —

that might be interested in

these mom-and-pop operations?

Do you have any

kind of rough estimate?
MS. WILLIAMS:

I really

don't,

sanay.

i Know ]ust recently as I was on an

errand in the county, you can drive down the
road one day you don't see any pallets of
stone.

You could drive down that road the next

day and you would see some pallets of stone
that had been brought out to the road so that a
truck could be picking them up.

So, I think

with this you would see more just because the
small person cannot justify all those expenses
that are involved.
CHAIRMAN REBER:

Can I interject?

What would be the dollars, just a round figure,
a guesstimate as to that expense?
talking about?
thousands

What are we

Are we talking hundreds,

—
REPRESENTATIVE MAJOR:
MS. WILLIAMS:

The process --

The process of the

permit?
CHAIRMAN REBER:
MS. WILLIAMS:

Right.

To have

—

See, I've never gone

through that as far as the large quarry.

We

did get the one last year and that was my two
sons that were doing that.
CHAIRMAN REBER:
MS. WILLIAMS:

I don't know.
That's all right.

I really don't know

wnat tnat cost was.
REPRESENTATIVE MAJOR:

Norm, do you

have a rough estimate?
MR. CLARK:

What the cost of

obtaining a permit for a small operation?
CHAIRMAN REBER:

Well, no.

I was

more concerned, Mr. Clark, with the costs that
would go to someone that didn't have the
necessary expertise to develop all of the
necessary data that would go into processing
the permit.

Theoretically, there may be a -- I

think it was your testimony where you said
there was engineering costs, legal costs,
attorney fees, and other data that would have
to be possibly put together.

Is that an issue

or is that not an issue?
MR. CLARK:

The biggest is $1,000 per

acre bonding and the payment of that can run
around trying to fill out all the paperwork out
and some of the addition that I guess going to
be added on to the regulations now.

If that

stands as it is, what I just received recently
from DEP some blasting stuff, and then
(inaudible word) are going to have to hire some
kind of a consultant to fill out a paper every

time you want to ao olasting in a stone quarry.
CHAIRMAN REBER:
I was curious what
MR. CLARK:

Yeah.

I was just

—

—
A thousand dollars an

acre is one of the big stumbling blocks.
CHAIRMAN REBER:

Yeah.

We're not

talking about a tremendous return on an
investment to begin with.
MR. CLARK:

No, you're not.

MS. WILLIAMS:

And I might interject,

I know just listening to the other people's
testimony.

You know, when the dirt is removed,

looking for -- Is there a viable stone quarry
here?
You know, as a farmer, in my case
where we have animals in those pastures in the
summertime; if you're not going to be having
the operation going there, you would be filling
that back in and seeding it down so that
there's grass there for the cows to be eating.
So that, you know, a farmer is a steward of the
land, and they really try to do the best they
can by —

by their way —

for their way of life

and for their operation.
CHAIRMAN REBER:

All right.

Gentlemen, any questions now?
MR. BAKER:

Just one.

Do most of the

dairy farmers, the smaller farmers, are they
actually doing the quarrying themselves or are
they subcontracting to the people that do the
quarrying on a regular basis?
MS. WILLIAMS:

I think you will find

some of both, but more that they're doing it
themselves.
MR. BAKER:

Does the standard

farmer

have the equipment, without major equipment
investment, that they could

substantially

quarry; if the bluestone does exist and is not
a stone like Mr. Chairman put in a swimming
pool, but if it was bluestone; do they have the
equipment without heavy equipment investment to
be able to make a profit?
MS. WILLIAMS:

If you are looking at

the stone like I'm talking about, waste stone
or stone that is not good enough to be sawed,
yes, because most farms have like a bucket on
the front of the tractor that could peel this
dirt off.

Then they have the prongs that go on

the front of the tractor to carry the big round
bails around.

This stone that cannot be sawed, you
can just go in with those prongs on that
tractor and stick it in.

And you know, some of

it might be this thick and some might be this
end, and the market calls for different
thicknesses also.

So that, a good share of

them would have the equipment that was needed
to do that.

If it turned out it was a gold

mine of a quarry, yes, they'd probably be out
to invest in equipment that was needed to do
the job that had to be done.
MR. BAKER:
question.

I'll make this my last

It is kind of a follow-up to this.

Under the current applications in having to put
this quarry back under the conditions of the
permit now under the application, does the
average farmer have the equipment and
capability to do that; to restore the
environmental quality of the quarry to what it
needs to be restored?
MS. WILLIAMS:

I would think,

because, just like we have given testimony
here, that probably the average mom and pop, if
they put out 200 ton, it's not a big hole.
They would have —

They would be able to fill

oacK in ana m e n put tne topsoil bacK and seed
down pretty easily.
MR. BAKER:

Thank you, Donna.

Thank

you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIRMAN REBER:
right.

Thank you.

Thank you very much, Donna.

All

I

appreciate your testimony and time.
Our last witness to present testimony
today is Mr. Norman Miller.

He's a

commissioner from Sullivan County.
thank you.

Mr. Miller,

We have been provided copies of

your testimony which you so graciously
prepared, as have the other witnesses.
you very much.

You may proceed.

MR. MILLER:
Representative.

Thank

Chairman Reber,

I wish I would have had a copy

of DEP's report before I came up with my
report.

I'm retired from the Pennsylvania

Department of Transportation with 31 years of
service.

Twenty-six of those years were as

Assistant District Soil Engineer in a ninecounty district.
My education is in the field of
geology, mineralogy and soil science.

However,

I don't have an official degree in any of those

rlexas.
But, as Assistant District Soils
Engineer, one of my major responsibilities was
to investigate and document the geologic
features that would have an effect on the
roadway alignments.

This investigation

involved reviewing aerial photography of the
proposed roadway area and to locate, study, and
review all available geologic data.
One of the most beneficial sources of
information was the numerous small stone
quarries, shale or gravel pits throughout the
area.

Over the past 50 years or so, one of

these small operations have developed on just
about every farm in northeastern Pennsylvania
or within our area.

Either the small flagstone

quarry to supplement the landowner's income, or
a shale or gravel pit which would be utilized
to construct and maintain dirt roads that calls
for the township, the farmers, subdivisions, or
whatever, utilize these.

The majority of these

operations are very small in nature, worked on
a part-time basis.

Some have been laying

dormant for many years, open, dormant.
On many occasions while visiting

tnese quarries I encountered small groups of
students and hobbyists also studying the
various rock formations, collecting minerals
and fossils.

Some of these quarries contain a

great source of information for educational
opportunities for local high school and
colleges, as well as various rock and mineral
clubs.
are —

What I'm saying is, that these things
There's no environmental reason

whatsoever to close up these small quarries.
Their information is there.
many purposes.

They're used for

As far as I'm concerned they

should be left open.

They don't create an

environmental problem.
I wish when DEP talks about safety, I
sorta get upset because I get angry.

I am on a

search and rescue team from Milford (phonetic)
Fire and Ambulance Association.

I spend about

ten times a year going over to Ricketts Glenn
State Park and carrying people up out of the
nine-mile gorge, sometimes three and a half
miles out of a place that shouldn't be allowed
for public access, but it's Pennsylvania State
Park; that is by far more hazardous than any
quarry I have ever seen in my life.

Tfiere's narrow, three-root wide paths
down along a hundred foot waterfalls that are
wet, slippery, unmaintained and they encourage
the public to go in and use these.

You can

find people eight, ten, 12-year old people
falling from them waterfalls.

You can find

300-pound people with high heels on walking
that gorge.

And I helped carry those people

out and it just -I've never been called for a hunter
or a person that fell at a quarry, never in my
life, and I have been on the search and rescue
team for over 10 years.

It just bugs me that

they use that safety, safety, safety bit as one
of their reasons for putting the regulations.
PennDOT cuts quarter-to-one or
vertical slopes along highways, sometimes
250-foot vertical wall with no right-of-way
fence.

No law requires a right-of-way fence

that's open to the public to anybody that wants
to go down over there.

And yet, they use

safety for a little 30, 40-foot quarry.

And I

do rope repelling also, so I love those
quarries.

Our search and rescue team goes out

and practice.

We look for places where we can

practice rope repelling, and those quarries are
wonderful.
anyhow

They should never be filled in, so

—
CHAIRMAN REBER:

interject something.

Mr. Miller, can I

I'd like the record to

reflect that we will send a copy of that
particular area to Secretary Oliver, Secretary
of the Department of Conservation and Natural
Resources, relative to the hazard that you have
expressed at that particular
MR. MILLER:
it

facility.

They're well aware of

—
CHAIRMAN REBER:
MR. MILLER:

—

Well

—

because they have

been made aware of it before.
CHAIRMAN REBER:

Now is the first

time I'm being made aware of it.

And when

I'm

made aware of something from someone that has
necessary in-the-field expertise, I at least
want to cover my posterior and let the
Secretary himself know.

We will afford a copy

of the written testimony to him so there's no
question about any out-of-context referral to
that particular issue.
I can appreciate what you're saying

Decause i ao ao, oeiieve it or not, I do quite
a bit of outdoor activities similar to what you
are talking about.

And I have seen similar

type of situations, hazardous situations that
exist.

I just feel compelled, since it is

specifically documented, that we should call
that to the Secretary's attention.
to interrupt you.

I'm

sorry

Counsel, make sure that gets

sent over to Secretary Oliver.
MR. MILLER:
speech.

I'll continue with my

Last fall I toured some of the

bluestone quarries up in Susquehanna County
along with Norm Clark, Charlie Shadduck and
several inspectors from the Bureau of Mines.
In some of the incidents, the quarries we
visited were old quarries that hadn't been
worked in many years.
The inspectors, one of the biggest
concerns was the safety of these being left
dormant and not being worked and not protected
of these inactive quarries.

And here's where I

see safety is a major concern of regulators of
the small quarries.
These people should take a hike in
Ricketts Glenn State Park.

There are nine

waterraiis in tne gorge, anywnere rrom 25 to
100 foot in height.

The hiking path that

traverses the gorge for approximately nine
miles is very steep, narrow, wet, and
unimproved.

And it's unimproved because these

trails were built back during the CCC camp
times.

For many years they were maintained by

the Bureau of Forestry.

Now, the Bureau of

Forestry's opinion is that these should be
reverted back to nature.

So, any of the steps

that fall out, any of the trees that fall down
across the paths they're not cleaned out.

They

are left there because it's a natural trail.
And it's very hazardous.
As County Commissioner of Sullivan
County, I'm very concerned about the economic
growth of our area.

Over the past few years

many of the small quarry operators have gone
out of business or are scared to death.
They're afraid to stay in business due to the
unnecessary regulations contained in Act 219.
I, therefore, strongly urge the committee to
recommend passage of House Bill 1975.
I just wanted to -- With DEP's report
here, if I could, I see in Sullivan County

there are 13 such quarries which would qualify
as needinq permits under the DEP's requlations
for the quarries.

I would dare say that those

13 -- we have no clues

—

First of all, we have no bluestone in
Sullivan County.

It's part, I think, of

Shumonq formation which is primary Catskill
(phonetic) at the Pocono formation in Sullivan
County, which are the red beds which we have a
lot of shale pits which come under this same
jurisdiction.
Every farmer in Sullivan County has a
shale pit.

They've been there 50 years.

They

use the shale maybe five loads a year to
maintain their roads.

They cannot afford to

fill it back in and open it back up.
to remain open.
regulated.

They have

And they should not be

And, I believe, none of them in

Sullivan County at this time are permitted, nor
should be permitted.
I see in the Colley quadrangle there
is 27 such sites identified here by DEP.
sites are permitted.
pits.

Two

Those aqain are shale

They're used for maintaining farm roads,

township roads, or whatever.

They are very

sraaii in size ana tney snouia not oe regulated
in any manner whatsoever.

They don't need

regulated.
I appreciate the opportunity to come
over here and give testimony.
people very much.

I thank you

If there are any questions,

I'll try to answer them.
CHAIRMAN REBER:
Mr. Miller.

Thank you very much,

As you are aware, certainly having

signed, we did receive your April 13th
correspondence from you as well as counterparts
on Sullivan County Commissioners.

That is

incorporated as part of the record.

It was

attached to Mr. Clark's testimony, and I still
wanted to note I received the same and
appreciate that view of the major governing
body of Sullivan County.
MR. SHUEY:

Just one, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN REBER:
MR. SHUEY:

Any questions?

Sure.

You mentioned the pits

are approximately 30 to 40 feet deep.
MR. MILLER:

If you are talking about

shale that's a large hole
MR. SHUEY:
MR. MILLER:

—

No shale; bluestone.
If you're talking about

uiie Diuestone quarries tnat i visited in
Susquehanna County were in that range, 30 to
40-foot vertical.

mostly

MR. SHUEY:

On all sides, or just

MR. MILLER:

No; just on the back

—

wall and tapered down because they're adrift
into the side of the mountain.
MR. SHUEY:

Okay.

CHAIRMAN REBER:

Thank you.
Representative

Major.
REPRESENTATIVE

MAJOR:

Thank

you.

Norm, I appreciate your testimony this
afternoon.

I also appreciate you taking issue

with the Department with regard to the safety
issues.

My experience with bluestone

operations goes back to the days when I worked
for Carmen Cirrenti (phonetic) back in the
'80's where I had the opportunity to tour many
of the quarries at that point in time.
I guess as you mentioned, my memory
does not recall ever a situation where there
was a hunter or, you know, an injury from
someone who drove a four-wheeler.
the quarries —

I think that

the people who mine these

quarries taKe serious concern, or nave serious
concern for the safety of their operations.

I

commend them all for it.
I don't have any questions at this
time.

That's it.
MR. MILLER:

To back up what you

said, part of the reason they don't have a
problem is that, these quarries, as well as
shale pits are usually built into the side of a
slope because that's where rock is closer to
the surface.
Normally, what they do in order to
stop surface drainage from above this coming
down into it, they put a diversion ditch around
the top of it.

If anybody was lost up there at

night, the first thing they would do is hit
these diversion ditches.
something is there.

They would know

Nobody goes out wandering

around at night necessarily without light.
REPRESENTATIVE MAJOR:
MR. MILLER:

We hope not.

But just the natural

design of them themselves eliminates them from
being a safety hazard.
REPRESENTATIVE MAJOR:
CHAIRMAN REBER:

Nothing else.

Chief Counsel

Taylor.
MR. TAYLOR:

Norm, having been with

the Department of Transportation with PennDOT
for quite a few years doesn't mean you
necessarily can answer this question.

But,

we're talking about if your DEP talks about
overburden for highway construction unlimited
removal, and I think you mentioned that too.
It's mentioned a couple times in previous
testimony.
Did Penn DOT have any kind of a
relationship with the quarry operators to
depend upon on this overburden, or was it just
an occasional time when you were in need for
highway fill that you would contact them?
MR. MILLER:

Urn —

PennDOT when they

have a need for highway fill material, they try
to balance out their roadway grade so that they
will get the required amount of fill, in most
cases, from the excavation of a roadway
alignment itself so that the fill and cut
situations balance themselves out.

On occasion

they will have areas where at one end of a
project they'll have to waste material because
they have too much in that area and it's

cneaper to ouy it next door than it is to
transport it seven or eight miles over a
construction site.

And they do have borrow

pits .
They do it both ways.

But normally,

they don't go out and locate a quarry and buy
surplus material there because of the
transportation.
MR. TAYLOR:
out, for example

They don't actively seek

—

MR.MILLER:
MR. TAYLOR:

No.
—

one of these quarry

operators for, you know -MR. MILLER:

No, they don't.

MR. TAYLOR:

—

MR. MILLER:

No.

fill material?

REPRESENTATIVE MAJOR:
Excuse me.

Isn't it

—

Isn't it my understanding that the

townships very often work with these shale?
The local townships look to those operators
very often for their products?
MR. MILLER:

The township

supervisors, right, they do.

In Sullivan

County the township, in Cherry Township, for
instance, has its own shale quarry; the biggest

one we nave in tne county.
regulated by DEP.

Those are not

They're exempt from the

regulations because they're a township entity
or a government entity.

At least they don't

have a permit.
MR. CLARK:

May I comment on that?

CHAIRMAN REBER:
Clark.

Certainly, Mr.

I'm just trying to decide if I want to

exercise my discretion as Chairman to let you
do it or not.

I certainly will.

MR. CLARK:

Go ahead.

I appreciate it.

CHAIRMAN REBER:
I'm just being facetious.

That's all right.
The heat in this

room is starting, you know, to clog up my mind.
MR. CLARK:
that issue.

I think I can clear up

Act 219 has an exemption for the

highway, but our past experience with DEP in my
own personal guarry where they came in and
threw the township out and told me that they
couldn't take overburden in the same site where
I was working in the stone quarry and that's
why that language is absent from the bill.
They told me it's only a repeat of exemption
number 2, 3 or 4, or whatever, of Act 219.
They're just repeating that very same statement

tnat's in Act ^iy ]ust tor tneir own clarity to
reduce the hassle from it.

Thank you very

much.
CHAIRMAN REBER:

Thank you.

Anything

else?
REPRESENTATIVE MAJOR:

I'd just like

to introduce some people in the audience, if I
may.
CHAIRMAN REBER:

Certainly.

Mr.

Miller, you can step down and we appreciate
your time.
MR. MILLER:

Thank you very much.

This is the first time I ever testified at one
of these and I find it very interesting.
like the way our government works.

I

I'm glad

you people listen to the people.
CHAIRMAN REBER:

It's good you went

to the best committee first because it will be
all downhill after that.
MR. MILLER:

I appreciate the fact

that you people listen to the people instead of
the regulators.
CHAIRMAN REBER:

Thank you.

REPRESENTATIVE MAJOR:

Chairman.

Thank you, Mr.

I'd like to introduce Mr. Lee Wilbur

wno is our past president or Biuestone
Association; also Attorney Hank Ingram who is
the attorney for our Biuestone Association;
Commissioner Lee Smith from Susquehanna County,
and Mr. Charles Shadduck who is a biuestone
operator from up in Rush Township, Susquehanna
County, and then the lovely lady next to Mr.
Miller is his lovely wife.
CHAIRMAN REBER:
Representative Major.

Thank you very much,

I appreciate it.

Thank

you very much for the interest that you folks
have shown, I'm sure, the various aspects of
this issue over many years.
one last presentation.

I see Roger has

Shall I call him?

MR. HORNBERGER:

Mr. Chairman, in the

simple interest of clarity of the record in
response to Mr. Taylor's question Norm Clark
about the data on the average size, I went out
to the front desk and made a copy of the three
relevant pages from the Penn State study and
could very quickly identify for the record,
which will support Norm Clark's statement and
also address Commissioner Miller's

concerns

about Sullivan County.
REPRESENTATIVE REBER:

Okay.

MR.

HURNBERGER:

I'll very quickly do

that.
REPRESENATIVE REBER:
MR. HORNBERGER:
Mr. Taylor.

All right.

I'll turn it over to

What I'm reading from is a report

of January 1996 from the office for Remote
Sensing of Earth Resources at Penn State
University.

The report is entitled

"Evaluation

of Bluestone Mining Operations in Northeast
Pennsylvania."
I've included two tables.

The most

important one, Table 1 is entitled
"Distribution of Mines by Size Category" and
the companion Table number two is labeled
"Distribution of Active Mines by USGS
Quadrangle and Year."

It reflects an aerial

photograph and study of potential operations
from aerial photographs of 1981, 1988 and 1993.
The note I placed on here for Mr.
Taylor and the record is that, refer to
corresponding DEP Table Numbers 1 and 2, the
testimony by Roderick A. Fletcher.

Above are

numbers of potential bluestone operations
identified on aerial photos.

Some of these

sites are determined by field validations to

represent otner types of industrial mineral
sites or other types of early disturbances.
That is not mining sites.
And on that to support Norm Clark's
statement, the two main size classes are from a
half acre to one and a half acres, 335
potential mines were identified.

In the size

class from one and a half to two and a half
acres 201 sites were identified.
on both sides a lot less.

Distribution

I'll turn that over

to Mr. Clark.
CHAIRMAN REBER:

For the record, I

neglected to mention, Representative Charles
Dent has joined the committee and is present.
At this time Representative Major, I
do appreciate all of the assistance you have
provided to staff as well as myself in
preparing for this.

As I said earlier, we have

many members with the committee that are with
other committees around the state right now.
We will see that all of the testimony is made
available, as well as the transcript of the
testimony and the prepared remarks we have had
circulated here today.
At this point in time there's no

rurtner Business before the committee, we will
stand in adjournment.

Thank you.

(At or about 5:30 p.m. the hearing
concluded).
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